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Preface

This book was prepared by EY Thailand and EY Lao. It was written to
givethe busy executives aquick overview of theinvestmentinLao PDR
mainly covering taxation, investment incentives, forms of business,
accounting practice and recent tax and regulatory updates.

Making decisions about foreign operations is complex and requires
an intimate knowledge of a country’s commercial climate, with a
realization that the climate can change overnight. Companies doing
business in Lao PDR, or planning to do so, are advised to obtain
current and detailed information from experienced professionals.
This book reflects information current at 30 April 2018.
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A.1l Forms of business

In Lao PDR, foreign investors may carry on businesses in the forms
of enterprise, branch office, representative office or joint venture.

Enterprise
There are 3 forms of enterprise in Lao PDR as follows: -
» Sole-trader enterprise

Sole-traderenterpriseisaformofenterpriseownedbyanindividual.
The sole-trader enterprise operates under the name of its owner
holding unlimited liabilities.

» Partnership enterprise

Partnership enterprises can be classified as general partnership
enterprise and limited partnership enterprise.
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» Company

A company is the most common form of enterprise, established
with its share capital. Payment for shares of a company may be
contributed in cash or in kind. The liabilities of the shareholders
are limited to those unpaid capital of the shares they hold.

There are 2 types of company in Lao PDR: private company and
public company. The private company can also be divided into 2
types as follows: -

» A one-person limited company which is owned by a single
shareholder

> Alimited liability company which has 2 or more shareholders,
with @ maximum of 30 members

A public company is a company having at least 9 shareholders
who are the initial promoters. The public company’s shares
can be freely transferred and openly offered to the public. The
public company is subject to a higher degree of control and
supervision by the authorities.

Branch office

A foreign corporation can set up a branch office in Lao PDR only
to perform certain business activities (e.g., foreign bank, financial
institution, insurance company, international consulting company
and foreign airline).

Representative office

A foreign corporation is allowed to set up a representative office
in Lao PDR only to operate non-income generating activities, e.g.,
liaising with its head office and gathering information on investment
feasibility in Lao PDR.
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Joint venture

A joint venture can be set up between foreign investor(s) and local
partner(s), with at least 10% contribution by the foreign investor(s)
of the total investment value.

A.2  Foreign ownership restrictions

Although a formal list of specific activities in which foreign
investment is restricted has not been announced yet, certain
businesses are only allowed to Lao citizens and entities. The
restricted activities include extraction of herbal products,
productionofpotteryandtableware, microfinanceinstitutionsandtour
operators. The wholesale and retail businesses were previously
restricted for foreign investors, but are now relaxed, provided that
certain conditions and minimum capital thresholds are met.

A.3 Land ownership restrictions

Foreign investors are not permitted to own land in Lao PDR.
Generally, land concessions granted by the government to foreign
enterprises are limited to 50 years. In case of the lease of land by
Lao citizen to foreign companies, it is limited to 30 years. However,
in all cases, lease period may be extended with the approval of the
competent authority. In addition, prior approval from the National
Assembly must be obtained for the lease or concession of land
having an area exceeding 10,000 hectares.
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A.4 Investment incentives

Lao PDR has in place the Law on Investment Promotion (LIP) to
govern investment in the country. The same investment rules apply
to both domestic and foreign investors.

TheLlPoutlinesthepromotedactivities, formsofpermittedinvestment,
investment terms, tax incentives, investors’ obligations and the
procedure for obtaining an investment license.

Investment authorities

The Investment Promotion and Management Committees (IPMC) is
the government authority overseeing investments under the control
list, concessionary activities and activities for development of
Special Economic Zones (SEZs).

The members of IPMC consist of the Minister of Ministry of Planning
and Investment (MPI), Head of provincial Planning and Investment
Division as well as representatives from the government, industrial,
commercial, financial and other relevant sectors.

The investment service unit of IPMC provides a wide range of
services to facilitate the investment, including providing
informationtoinvestors, beingacontactingunitinreceivinginvestment
applications and submitting them for further consideration,
coordinating with relevant agencies to issue enterprise license,
tax license, operation license, etc. after obtaining an authorization
by the IPMC as well as monitoring and inspecting the investment
implementation. The investment service unit also acts as the one
point of contact of relevant government agencies for the investors.

38



Doing Business in Lao PDR 2018

Types of investment

There are 3 types of investment in Lao PDR: general business,
concession business and activities for the development of SEZs.

» General business

General business can be divided into 2 groups, which are
uncontrolled and controlled businesses. Controlled businesses
are businesses effecting the national stability, social order,
traditional culture, environment, society and nature which must
be considered by relevant governments before obtaining the
investment authorization.

Investors wishing to invest in the general business listed in
the control list are required to submit an application to the
investment service unit at the MPI and obtain approval from the
IPMC.

Whereas, investors wishing to invest in general business not
under the control list are required to submit an application to
the Ministry of Industry and Commerce (MOIC) and register the
enterprise in compliance with the Law on Enterprise.

» Concession business

Concession business refers to business activities which require a
permission from the government in order to utilize assets owned
by the government to undertake certain businesses, e.g., land
and mineral concession, electric power generation, airline and
telecommunication.

Investors wishing to invest in concession business are required
to submit an application to the investment service unit at the
MPI for initial assessment. Subsequently, the application will be
passed to the IPMC for further consideration and approval.
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The terms of the concession granted depends on the type, size,
amount of investment and conditions of the concession activities
as well as relevant requlations and laws.

Concessions may not exceed 50 years and may be extended
with the approval from the government or National Assembly
or Provincial Assembly if the business benefits the country,
complies with the concession agreement and contributes to local
development.

Activities for the development of special economic zones

Activities for the development of SEZs refers to business
activities that develop the comprehensive infrastructure and
new city to attract investments regarding modern technology,
innovations in agricultural production, clean production and
other sustainable and environmental developments.

For zone developers or infrastructure developers, they are
required to submit an application to the MPI for initial evaluation
and subsequently to the IPMC for consideration and approval.

As for investors wishing to invest in certain businesses in the SEZ,
they are required to submit an application directly to the zone
management committee of the SEZ for consideration and
approval.

40



Doing Business in Lao PDR 2018

Tax incentives

Tax incentives are available to companies engaging in the promoted
businesses in Lao PDR. The company applying for the tax incentives
is required to have either the minimum registered capital of at least
LAK 1.2 billion or employment of at least 30 Lao experts or 50 Lao
general labors with contract term of at least 1 year.

The companies engaging in the promoted sectors are qualified for
the below tax incentives: -

» Exemption from profit tax for the period of 4 to 15 consecutive
years, starting from the date on which the company generates
income, depending on the zone where the investment is located
(see Table below)

» Exemption from land rental or concession fee, the period of
which depends on the zone where the investment is located (see
Table below)

» Exemption from import duties and 0% Value Added Tax (VAT) on
imported materials and equipment which are not available in Lao
PDR, and machinery and vehicles directly used in production

» Exemption from import duties on imported raw materials,
equipment and parts used in the production of export goods and
exemption from export duties and 0% VAT on such export goods

» Exemption from VAT on domestic purchase of raw material which
is not natural resources for production of export goods

» Exemptionfrom profittaxinthe nextaccountingyearif net profitis
reinvested to expand the business operations. The amount of
profit entitled to tax exemption shall be in proportion with profit
ratio reinvested.
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Groups of promoted businesses include: -

A Investments in green agriculture, green agriculture product
processing industry, handicraft, education, human resource
development, modern hospital, medicine and/or medical
equipment manufacturing factory.

B Investments in high technology, natural, cultural and historical
tourism industry, infrastructure development, micro financial
institutions and modern commercial center.

Profit tax Land fee
exemption exemption
Zone Description period (years) period (years)

A B (of D

Zones where socio-

1 gconomlc infrastructure 15 10 15 10
is not favorable for
investment

Zones where socio-
2 economic infrastructure is 7 4 8 5
favorable for investment

Under specific Under specific

3 SEZs . .
regulations regulations
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B.1  Corporate income tax

At a glance
Description Rate (%)
Profit tax 24
Branch tax 24

Withholding tax on payments to non-residents: -

Dividend 10 @
Interest 10 (@
Capital gains 10 @
Royalty 5@

(@) The rate could be reduced or exempt under the tax treaties.
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Scope of corporate income tax

Profit tax is the term of corporate income tax in Lao PDR. All
enterprises are subject to the profit tax on their Lao-sourced income.
Foreign companies deriving income from payers in Lao PDR or
entering into joint venture contracts with project owners in Lao PDR
are considered to be generating Lao-sourced income and will be
subject to the profit tax.

In addition, the Lao parent enterprises are required to include income
generated by its overseas branches and/or representative offices in
its accounts for profit tax calculation purposes.

Tax rate

The standard rate of profit tax for partnership enterprises, companies
and joint venture is 24%. Certain businesses (e.g., tobacco related
business) are subject to tax at a rate of 26%. Companies in certain
industries (e.g., mining) are taxed at the rates specified in the
agreement concluded with the government. Public companies listed
in the Lao Securities Exchange (LSX) in Lao PDR may be entitled to a
reduced tax rate for 4 years.

The sole-trader enterprises and freelancers are subject to the
progressive profit tax at the rates ranging from 0% to 24% below: -

Annual profit base (LAK) Rate (%)
3,600,000 or less 0
3,600,001 to 8,000,000 5
8,000,001 to 15,000,000 10
15,000,001 to 25,000,000 15
25,000,001 to 40,000,000 20
40,000,001 or more 24
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Assessable income

To determine the taxable income, accounting profits are adjusted in
accordance with Lao Tax Law.

Tax-exempted income

Significant tax-exempted income include, but not limited to: -

>

>

Dividend income received from other enterprises which profit tax
has been paid

Reserve recovery

Deductible expenses

Allowable tax deductions from gross revenue include, but not limited
to the following: -

>

Business related expenses such as electricity, salaries and wages,
welfare and social security, rent, interest and insurance

Depreciation
Traveling cost for management and administrative works, capped
at 0.6% of annual revenue

Cost of guest entertainment and telephone calls, capped at 0.4%
of annual revenue

Donations and support, capped at 0.3% of annual revenue

Cost of advertising, capped at 0.5% of annual revenue

45



Non-deductible expenses

Expenses not related to business activities are not deductible for tax
purposes, including but not limited to the following: -

> Profit tax

» Interest on shareholder loan

» Penalties or fines

» Golf expenses, dancing expenses, gifts and awards
> Reserves for risks and unexpected losses
Inventories

The law does not prescribe a basis for the valuation of inventory, but
it is generally valued using the lower of cost or market value for tax
purposes.

Depreciation

The following table sets forth the annual tax depreciation rates for
depreciable assets: -

Annual tax

T f
ype of assets depreciation rate (%)

Intangible assets 20to 50
Buildings

Industrial buildings 2to5

Commercial and residential buildings 5t0 10
Plant and machinery 20
Motor vehicles 20
Office equipment 20
Ships and aircraft 10
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Loss carried forward

Losses which are certified by the tax authority can be carried
forward and offset against the profit in the following 3 consecutive
accounting years. The carryback of loss is not allowed.

Tax consolidation concept

There is no tax consolidation concept. Tax losses of one company
cannot be used to offset against the taxable profits of another
affiliate.

Transfer pricing

Currently, there is no transfer pricing rule in Lao PDR.

Thin capitalization rule

Currently, Lao PDR does not have a thin capitalization rule.

However, foreign entities investing in concession businesses are
subject to special capital rules under the LIP which requires them to
have the registered capital of at least 30% of the total investment and
thus, their debt of not more than 70% of total assets for the entire
project lifetime.

Tax compliance and administration

The Lao PDR's fiscal year is in line with the calendar year. For
accounting purposes, the fiscal year can be different from the
calendar year with the pre-approval from the Ministry of Finance
(MOF). However, for tax compliance purposes, only calendar year is
acceptable.
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Companies, branch office, representative office and joint venture
using advanced or ordinary accounting system are required to
guarterly file the tax return and pay the tax by 10 April, 10 July, 10
October and 10 January.

The annual tax return and the final tax payment will be due on 1
March of the following year. The quarterly payments are calculated
based on the final tax liabilities of the preceding year or the actual
profits during the current quarter or the projected liability for the
current year. Any excess payment may be carried forward to be
credit against the future profit tax liability.

As for the companies using basic accounting system, the profit tax is
required to be declared and paid as agreed with the government at
the deemed profit ranging from 3% to 25%, unless proved otherwise.

Failure to file a return and pay tax results in a daily penalty of 0.1%
of the tax shortfall.

Tax treaties

Lao PDR has concluded double tax treaties with 11 countries as
follows: -

Belarus Luxembourg South Korea
Brunei Malaysia Thailand
China Myanmar Vietnam
Indonesia Singapore
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B.2  Lump-sum tax

Lump-sum tax is applicable on the gross income of small-sized
enterprises that are outside the VAT system. Different rates are
applied to manufacturing, trading and service businesses as follows: -

Amount (LAK)/Rate (%)

Annual revenue (LAK)
Manufacturing Trading Service

12,000,000 or less Exempt
12.000.001 to 50,000,000 Maximum LAK 600,000/year
(see Note)
50,000,001 to 120,000,000 3 4 5
120,000,001 to 240,000,000 4 5 6
240,000,001 to 400,000,000 5 6 7

Note: The government will determine the amount of tax liability
based on the investment locations.
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B.3  Withholding profit tax for foreign contractor

Although there is no specific or separate tax regulation applicable
to foreign contractors in Lao PDR. In practice, foreign individuals or
entities that earn income in Lao PDR on the basis of a contract will
be regarded as foreign contractors and any payments paid by Lao
payers to the foreign contractors will be subject to withholding profit

tax at the deemed rates as follows: -

Types of business activities
Manufacturing (agriculture and industry)

Trading (except for goods delivered outside
Lao PDR), transportation and wood
plantation trade

Construction, advisory and other services
Exploration drilling or filling land

Natural wood trade, forestry products and
mines, agency service and land development
and construction for sale

Entertainment
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B.4 Personal income tax
Who is liable?

Personal income tax is imposed on the individuals' income
generated in Lao PDR. The following taxable persons are required to
pay personal income tax in Lao PDR: -

» Persons who generate income in Lao PDR

» Lao residents who work abroad and generate tax-exempted
income abroad

» Lao employees who work in embassies, consular offices or
international organizations in foreign countries and generate
income in Lao PDR

» Foreigners who work and receive salary from local or foreign
entities, unless exempt under a tax treaty or investment
agreement between the government and investor

Assessable income
Taxable income include, but not limited to the following: -

» Employment income, including salaries, wages, bonuses,
overtime payments, position allowances, title fee, allowances for
members of boards of management and other benefits in cash
or in kind

» Dividends and profits or other benefits paid to shareholders or
partners

» Income/gains from the sale of shares

» Interest income from loans, brokerage or agency commissions
and income from guarantee fees received according to contracts
or other binding obligations
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Income from non-business activities

Income from prizes, lotteries in cash or in kind over a value of
LAK 5 million

Income from leases of land, houses, vehicles, structures,
machines or other properties

Income from intellectual properties such as patents, copyrights,
trademarks or other rights

Income from sale/transfer of land-use rights, structures or land
with existing structures thereon

Tax-exempted income

The following types of income are exempt from tax: -

>

>

Salaries of up to LAK 1 million

Certain allowances, including pensions and one-time allowances,
marital support for spouse and children under the age of 18-year
old and additional allowances for special circumstances (e.q.,
maternity, sickness, occupational accidents)

Dividends paid to shareholders of companies listed in the LSX

Capital gains derived from the sale of shares of companies listed
in the LSX

Per diem for students
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Rates

The following progressive tax rates are imposed on the employment

income: -

Taxable income (LAK) Rate (%)

1,000,000 or less 0

1,000,001 to 3,000,000 5

3,000,001 to 6,000,000 10

6,000,001 to 12,000,000 12

12,000,001 to 24,000,000 15

24,000,001 to 40,000,000 20

40,000,001 or more 24

Other types of income are subject to the following flat tax rates: -

Types of income Rate (%)
Dividends or other benefits received by shareholders 10
or partners
I ins f h le of sh i i
ncome/gains from the sale of shares in private 100r 2

companies (see Note 1)

Interest, commission from brokerage or agency and
income from guarantees provided in accordance with 10
contracts or other binding obligations

Income from non-business activities 10
Income from prizes and lotteries in cash or in kind of

. 5
over LAK 5 million
Income from the lease of land, houses, vehicles, 10

machines or other properties
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Types of income Rate (%)

Income from intellectual property such as patents,

5
copyrights, trademarks or other rights

Income from the sale or transfer of land-use rights,
structures or land with existing structures thereon 5or2
(see Note 2)

Notes: -

(1) In case there are supporting documents for the acquisition cost,
the capital gain shall be taxed at the rate of 10%. Otherwise, it
shall be taxed at the rate of 2% of gross selling price.

(2) In case there are supporting documents for the acquisition cost,
the capital gain shall be taxed at the rate of 5%. Otherwise, it
shall be taxed at the rate of 2% of gross selling price.

Tax filing and payment procedures

Payroll taxes are deducted at source and payable by the 15th day of
the following month. The employer is responsible for the filing of the
return and payment of the taxes to the tax authority.

B.5 VAT

VAT is levied at the rate of 10% on goods purchased/imported,
provision of service, the export of unfinished goods made from
natural resources in Lao PDR and the lease of immovable property.

The entities generating an annual revenue exceeding LAK 400
million are required to register as a VAT operator in Lao PDR.
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B.6 Customs duties and excises taxes
Customs duties

Unless exemptions are available, all imports and exports of goods are
subject to duties upon importation and exportation. They generally
range from 5% to 40%. Higher rates may apply on luxury goods and
vehicles.

All customs procedures are administered by the Customs Depart-
ment under the MOF.

Excise taxes

Excise taxis levied on the consumption of certain imported goods and
domestically-produced goods and services in Lao PDR. The excise
tax rates range from 3% to 90%.
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Method of accounting

Companies generally use an accrual method of accounting for
preparing the financial statements.

Accounting principles

Public Interest Entities (PIEs), including listed company, bank,
insurance company, securities company and other financial
institutions are required to apply the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) which promulgated by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Non-PIEs are applied to the Lao Financial Reporting Standards
(LFRSs)whichinprinciple, follow the IFRSs for Small and Medium sized
Enterprises (IFRSs for SMEs). LFRSs consist of LFRSs for large sized
non-PIEs and LFRSs for small and medium sized non-PIEs.
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Lao Accounting Law requires companies and entities to prepare
accounting journal entries, books of account and financial
statements in Lao language and in local currency (LAK), unless they
have obtained permission from the MOF to use foreign language and
foreign currency.

Disclosure requirements

The basic financial statements include a statement of financial
position (balance sheet), income statement and explanatory notes to
financial statements. The large sized PIEs and non-PIEs are required
to additionally include a statement of changes in shareholders’
equity and a statement of cash flows to their financial statements.

Audit requirements

Entities which the annual financial statements are required to be
audited by an independent audit firm are as follows: -
» Foreign enterprises

» Banks and other financial institutions under the supervision of
the Bank of the Lao PDR

» Insurance companies and insurance agents

» Listed companies, securities companies and public companies

» State-owned enterprises

» Granted projects with external loan
Filing and reporting requirements

All companies and branch offices are required to prepare their
annual financial statements and submit them to the Lao PDR’s tax
office within 2 months from the closing date of the annual accounts.
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Listed companies are required to submit a semi-annual report to
the LSX within 45 days after the end of the first 6 months of their
accounting period and an annual report within 3 months after the
year-end.

Books and records keeping

All business entities must maintain all accounting and supporting
documents for at least 10 years.

Professional associations

The Advisory Accountancy Board under the supervision of the MOF is
responsible for overseeing the accounting standards in Lao PDR while
the Lao Chamber of Professional Accountants and Auditors (LCPAA)
is responsible for registering and certifying the Certified Public
Accountants.
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D.1 Social security contributions

The rates for social security contribution in Lao PDR are 5.5%
for employees and 6% for employers. These rates are applied to
salaries of up to LAK 4.5 million. In other words, the maximum
monthly contributions are LAK 247,500 for employees and LAK
270,000 for employers.

The compulsory target groups under the social security scheme
include but not limited to the following: -

» Labors in all economic and social sectors, including state and
private enterprises, financial institutions, factories, hotels,
restaurants and farms

» Workers and foreign labors under an employment who receive
salary or wage

> Self-employed persons and freelancers can voluntarily apply to
join the social security scheme.
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D.2

Entry visas

A visa is required for a visit to Lao PDR for any duration. There are
various categories of visa for foreign nationals entering Lao PDR,
some of them are presented below: -

>

>

>

4

Business visas

Business visas (NI-B2 or I-B2) are issued to foreign
businessmen (and their family members) who are investing or
collecting information about business in Lao PDR.

Labor visas

Labor visas (LA-B2) are issued to foreigners (and their family
members) who are employed in Lao PDR.

Tourist visas

Tourist visas (T-B3) are issued to foreign visitors for the purpose
of tourism in Lao PDR.

Short-term visas
Short-term visas (NI-B3) are issued to: -

» Foreigners who are authorized to join meetings, training or
temporary study in Lao PDR

» Foreigners who wish to visit parents, cousins, friends and
other legal purposes in accordance with the regulations of
Lao PDR
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» Long-term visas

Long-term visas (I-B3) are issued to foreigners involved in good
missions to protect and/or build the nation (e.g., war veterans)
or those who are considered beneficial to Lao PDR (e.qg.,
scientists) and wish to stay in Lao PDR for an extended period.

In general, foreigners who intend to stay in Lao PDR for an
extended period must deposit at least approximately LAK 165
million for 6-month stay and at least approximately LAK 330
million for 1-year stay in Lao PDR bank account.

» Permanent visas

Permanent visas (P-B3) are issued to foreigners who are
authorized to stay permanently in Lao PDR.

Immigration authorities at any designated international entry point
or Embassies or General Consulates of Lao PDR in foreign countries
can approve the tourist visas, short-term visas and transit visas for
foreigners. Other types of visa, such as multiple-entry visas, must be
approved by the Ministry of Foreign Affairs.

Individuals entering into Lao PDR must have a passport validity of no
less than 6 months.

D.3 Work permits

To work in Lao PDR, a foreigner must obtain a visa and apply for a
work permit and foreign identity card. Entities that are authorized to
employ foreigners must register and apply for work permits for those
foreigners within 1 month from the day they receive authorization.

Work permits will be issued to foreigners only for positions requiring
a high level professional or managerial skill.

61



The work permits application must be submitted to the Ministry of
Labor and Social Welfare by the employer. Any document certified
in a foreign country must be translated into Lao language and legally
notarized.

Work permits are usually issued for a period of up to 12 months and
can be extended for up to 12 months each time. However, the total
working period must not exceed 5 years. If the work period is longer
than 5 years, a new work permit must be applied. A work permit
generally expires when the employment contract is terminated.

Temporary work permits can be issued for up to 3 months to cover a
probationary period for monitoring and evaluating projects or for
the installation and preparation of machinery in accordance with an
equipment sales contract.

The spouse of the holder of a multiple-entry business visa and work
permit does not automatically receive the same type of authorization.
A separate application must be filed at the same time as the
expatriate’s application.
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List of government
agencies in Lao PDR and
contact details
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Government agency Contact details
Ministry of Planning and Tel: + 856 21 216 663
Investment (Investment Website: www.investlaos.gov.la

Promotion Department)

Ministry of Industry and Tel: +856 21 453 493
Commerce Website: www.moic.gov.la
Ministry of Finance Tel: +856 21 217 025,
(Tax Department) 242 688

Website: www.tax.gov.la

Ministry of Finance Tel: + 856 21 911 336
Website: www.mof.gov.la
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LAO PDR
LCPAA

LFRSs
LIP
LSX
MOF
MOIC
MPI
PIEs
SEZs
VAT

International Accounting Standards Board
International Financial Reporting Standards
Investment Promotion and Management Committees
Kip, the Lao PDR’s unit of currency

Lao People’s Democratic Republic

Lao Chamber of Professional Accountants and
Auditors

Lao Financial Reporting Standards
Law on Investment Promotion

Lao Securities Exchange

Ministry of Finance

Ministry of Industry and Commerce
Ministry of Planning and Investment
Public Interest Entities

Special Economic Zones

Value Added Tax
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r@ - Country updates and
0 v @R highlights of updates in

January 2018

> The tax treaty between Lao PDR and Indonesia has become
effective in January 2018.

> An applicability of new excise tax rates for fuel, alcohol,
cigarette and entertainment services.
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October
2019

January
2019

August
2018

May
2018

April
2018

March
2018

Myanmar

Cambodia

Vietnam

Cambodia

Myanmar

Myanmar

Indonesia

Myanmar

Indonesia

All taxpayers are required to follow
the new financial year from 1 October
to 30 September, as opposed to from
1 April to 31 March.

Expected effective of tax treaty
between Cambodia and China

Expected effective of the tax reform
proposal (including corporate income
tax, VAT, personal income tax, special
sales tax and natural resource tax)

Arm'’s length interest rate on related-
party loan required

Effective of new Myanmar Companies
Law

Issuance of notification clarifying
conditions and requirements for
foreigners to engage in wholesale and
retail businesses in Myanmar

Effective of the new requlations on
tax holidays for pioneer industries
covering 17 sectors with 100%
corporate tax exemption for 5 to
20 years, depending on new capital
investment amount

State-owned enterprises to follow the
new financial year from 1 October to
30 September while other taxpayers
continue to follow the old financial
year from 1 April to 31 March

Reporting obligation required for a
debt-to-equity ratio calculation and
any private overseas loan transaction,
which must be attached with the
annualcorporate income tax return,
starting fiscal year 2017

66



Doing Business in Lao PDR 2018

February Cambodia Issuance of an updated related party
2018 disclosure form (Annex 1) as an
attachment to the 2017 annual Tax
On Income return, which is due on 31

March 2018

Vietnam  Input VAT exceeding VND 300 million
for the goods imported for re-export
can be refundable

January Cambodia Effective of tax treaty between
2018 Cambodia and Singapore

Effective of tax treaty between
Cambodia and Thailand

Indonesia Effective of tax treaty between
Indonesia and Lao PDR

Lao PDR  New excise tax rates for fuel, alcohol,
cigarette and entertainment services

October Cambodia Issuance of TP rules covering arm's
2017 length principles, TP documentations
and TP methodologies

August  Indonesia Effective of stricter anti-treaty abuse
2017 rules for non-Indonesian residents
with income from Indonesia

May Vietnam  New TP rule in accordance with the
2017 BEPS Action 13: Requiring the three-
tier TP documentation (Master file,
Local file and CbCR)
Vietham  Introduction of restriction on the
tax-deductible interest in accordance
with BEPS Action 4
Vietnam  Introduction of a substance over form
for the deductibility of related-party
services and interest expenses
December Indonesia New TP rule in accordance with
2016 the BEPS Action 13: Requiring the
three-tier TP documentation
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Our “Doing Business" booklet series

With a local market saturation and intense competition amongst
domestic players, a business expansion to overseas is increasingly
gaining attention from investors. An effective tax risk management
has posted crucial challenges to many corporations investing in
foreign countries. As a starting point, to be well prepared for your
outbound investment in CLMV+I, read our Doing Business booklet

series.
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